Committee Agenda

Epping Forest
District Council

Area Plans Subcommittee C
Wednesday, 24th August, 2005

Place: Civic Offices, High Street, Epping

Room: Council Chamber

Time: 7.30 pm

Democratic Services Gary Woodhall, Research and Democratic Services

Officer Tel: 01992 564470 Email: gwoodhall@eppingforestdc.gov.uk
Members:

Councillors K Wright (Chairman), R Morgan (Vice-Chairman), Mrs D Collins, P Gode,
Mrs H Harding, D Jacobs, D Kelly and Mrs M McEwen

A BRIEFING FOR THE CHAIRMAN, VICE-CHAIRMAN AND
APPOINTED SPOKESPERSONS WILL BE HELD AT 6.30 P.M. IN
COMMITTEE ROOM 1 ON THE DAY OF THE SUB-COMMITTEE.

1. ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS AT COUNCIL PLANNING
SUBCOMMITTEES (Pages 5 - 6)

General advice to people attending the meeting is attached.
2. MINUTES (Pages 7 - 12)

To confirm the minutes of the last meeting of the Sub-Committee held on 27 July
2005.

3. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

(Head of Research and Demaocratic Services) To declare interests in any item on this
agenda.

5. ANY OTHER BUSINESS

Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, together with paragraphs 6 and
25 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution requires that the



Area Plans Subcommittee C Wednesday, 24 August 2005

permission of the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive,
before urgent business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary agenda
of which the statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted.

In accordance with Operational Standing Order 6 (non-executive bodies), any item
raised by a non-member shall require the support of a member of the Committee
concerned and the Chairman of that Committee. Two weeks' notice of non-urgent
items is required.

6. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL (Pages 13 - 38)

(Head of Planning and Economic Development) To consider planning applications as
set out in the attached schedule

Background Papers: (i) Applications for determination — applications listed on the
schedule, letters of representation received regarding the applications which are
summarised on the schedule. (ii) Enforcement of Planning Control — the reports of
officers inspecting the properties listed on the schedule in respect of which
consideration is to be given to the enforcement of planning control.

7. DELEGATED DECISIONS

(Head of Planning and Economic Development) Schedules of planning applications
determined by the Head of Planning and Economic Development under delegated
powers since the last meeting of a Plans Subcommittee may be inspected in the
Members Room or at the Planning and Economic Development Information Desk at
the Civic Offices, Epping.

8. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS

To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the
public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of business set
out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt information
as defined in the paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act indicated:

Agenda Exempt Information
Iltem No Subject Paragraph Number
Nil Nil Nil

To resolve that the press and public be excluded from the meeting during the
consideration of the following items which are confidential under Section 100(A)(2) of
the Local Government Act 1972:

Agenda
Item No Subject
Nil Nil

Paragraph 9 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution require:

D All business of the Council requiring to be transacted in the presence of the
press and public to be completed by 10.00 p.m. at the latest.

2) At the time appointed under (1) above, the Chairman shall permit the
completion of debate on any item still under consideration, and at his or her

2



Area Plans Subcommittee C Wednesday, 24 August 2005

®3)

discretion, any other remaining business whereupon the Council shall proceed
to exclude the public and press.

Any public business remaining to be dealt with shall be deferred until after the
completion of the private part of the meeting, including items submitted for
report rather than decision.

Background Papers: Paragraph 8 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of
the Constitution define background papers as being documents relating to the subject
matter of the report which in the Proper Officer's opinion:

(@)

(b)

disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the
report is based; and

have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report does not
include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential
information (as defined in Rule 10) and in respect of executive reports, the
advice of any political advisor.

Inspection of background papers may be arranged by contacting the officer
responsible for the item.



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 1

Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees
Are the meetings open to the public?

Yes all our meetings are open for you to attend. Only in special circumstances are the public
excluded.

When and where is the meeting?

Details of the location, date and time of the meeting are shown at the top of the front page of the
agenda along with the details of the contact officer and members of the Subcommittee. A map
showing the venue will be attached to the agenda.

Can | speak?

If you wish to speak you must register with Democratic Services by 4.00 p.m. on the day
before the meeting. Ring the number shown on the top of the front page of the agenda.
Speaking to a Planning Officer will not register you to speak, you must register with Democratic
Service. Speakers are not permitted on Planning Enforcement or legal issues.

Who can speak?

Three classes of speakers are allowed: One objector (maybe on behalf of a group), the local
Parish or Town Council and the Applicant or his/her agent.

What can | say?

You will be allowed to have your say about the application but you must bear in mind that you are
limited to three minutes and if you are not present by the time your item is considered, the
Subcommittee will determine the application in your absence.

Can | give the Councillors more information about my application or my objection?

Yes you can but it must not be presented at the meeting. If you wish to send further
information to Councillors, their contact details can be obtained through Democratic Services or
our website www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk. Any information sent to Councillors should be copied to
the Planning Officer dealing with your application.

How are the applications considered?

The Subcommittee will consider applications in the agenda order. On each case they will listen to
an outline of the application by the Planning Officer. They will then hear any speakers
presentations. The order of speaking will be (1) Objector, (2) Parish/Town Council, then (3)
Applicant or his/her agent. The Subcommittee will then debate the application and vote on either
the recommendations of officers in the agenda or a proposal made by the Subcommittee. Should
the Subcommittee propose to follow a course of action different to officer recommendation, they
are required to give their reasons for doing so.

The Subcommittee cannot grant any application, which is contrary to Local or Structure Plan
Policy. In this case the application would stand referred to the next meeting of the District
Development Control Committee.

Further Information?

Can be obtained through Democratic Services or our leaflet “Your Choice, Your Voice’

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



Agenda Item 2

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL
COMMITTEE MINUTES

Committee:  Area Plans Subcommittee C Date: 27 July 2005

Place: Civic Offices, Epping Time: 7.30 -8.20 pm

Members K Wright (Chairman), R Morgan (Vice-Chairman), Mrs D Collins, P Gode,
Present: D Jacobs and Mrs M McEwen

Other

Councillors: M Colling, B Scrutton and Ms S Stavrou
Apologies: Mrs H Harding and D Kelly

Officers R Bintley (Principal Planning Officer) and G J Woodhall (Democratic Services
Present: Assistant)

15. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION

The Chairman welcomed members of the public to the meeting and outlined the
procedures and arrangements adopted by the Council to enable persons to address
the Sub-Committee, in relation to the determination of applications for planning
permission. The Sub-Committee noted the advice provided for the public and
speakers in attendance at Council Planning Sub-Committee meetings.

16. MINUTES
RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 29 June 2005 be taken as read and
signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

17. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

@) Pursuant to the Council’'s Code of Member Conduct, Councillors K Wright, P
Gode and D Jacobs declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda
for the meeting, by virtue of the Councillors all being members of Ongar Parish
Council. The Councillors had determined that their interest was not prejudicial and
would remain in the meeting for the consideration of the application and voting
thereon:

. EPF/760/05 — Smith’s Brasserie, Fyfield Road, Ongar.
18. ANY OTHER BUSINESS

It was noted that there was no other urgent business for consideration by the Sub-
Committee.

The Head of Research and Democratic Services informed the Sub-Committee that

the fifth application on the Development Control Schedule - EPF/1480/04 Ongar
Motors & Transport Company, The Borough, Greensted Road, Ongar — had been

Page 7



Area Plans Subcommittee C 27 July 2005

19.

20.

withdrawn from the meeting as late information had been received from Essex
County Council that required further consideration and assessment by officers.

The Sub-Committee expressed concern over the withdrawal as it was felt that this
was not the first occasion when the County Council had responded late to a planning
application, after the agenda had been produced, and had necessitated a delay in its
determination. It was highlighted that in this particular instance, the County Council
had not responded until two days before the meeting, which had not allowed
sufficient time for their views to be considered by all concerned in respect of the
determination of this application. The Sub-Committee felt that the County Council
should respond to planning applications prior to the production of the agenda in order
to permit sufficient time for officers, members and the applicant to consider any
representations made.

RESOLVED:

That the Chairman of the Sub-Committee be authorised to write a letter to
Essex County Council:

@) highlighting the concerns of the Sub-Committee in respect of the late
submission of information to the Council in relation to the determination of
planning applications; and

(b) requesting that, in future, the County Council respond to planning
applications prior to the production of the agenda.

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL
The Sub-Committee considered a schedule of applications for planning permission.
RESOLVED:

That the planning applications numbered 1 — 5 be determined as set out in
the attached schedule to these minutes.

DELEGATED DECISIONS
The Sub-Committee noted that schedules of planning applications determined by the

Head of Planning and Economic Development under delegated authority since the
last meeting had been circulated and could be inspected at the Civic Offices.

CHAIRMAN

Page 8



Minute Item 19

PLANS SUB _COMMITTEE ‘C’ 27 JULY 2005

1.

APPLICATION NO: EPF/2260/04 PARISH The Rodings
SITE ADDRESS:

Hales Farm Nether Street, Abbess Roding

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL:

Conversion of farm buildings into three live/work units, comprising of workspace area
and one each of one bed, two bed and four bed accommaodation.

DEFERRED:

Members were concerned regarding the condition of buildings. Therefore, to allow
officers to further negotiate with the applicant, in particular Building C.

APPLICATION NO: LB/EPF/359/05 PARISH The Rodings
SITE ADDRESS:

Hales Farm, Nether Street, Abbess Roding

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL:

Grade Il Listed Building application for the conversion of farm buildings within the
curtilage of the listed building.

DEFERRED

APPLICATION NO: EPF/866/04 PARISH Moreton, Bobbingworth
& The Lavers

SITE ADDRESS:

Londfields, Weald Bridge Road, Magdalen Laver
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL

Detached games room/gym.

GRANTED SUBJECT TO:

1. To be commenced within 5 years.
2. Materials of construction to be agreed.
3. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General

Permitted Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other order revoking
further amending or re-enacting that order) no development generally permitted
by virtue of Part 1, Class E shall be undertaken without the prior written
permission of the Local Panning Authority.

4, The proposed games room building shall only be used for purposes ancillary to

the main dwelling Longfields and shall at no time be used as a separate
residential unit.

Page 9



PLANS SUB _COMMITTEE ‘C’ 27 JULY 2005

APPLICATION NO: EPF/760/05 PARISH Ongar

SITE ADDRESS:

Smiths Brasserie, Fyfield Road, Ongar

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL:

Outline planning permission to demolish existing building and car park, and erection of
20 No. flats with associated parking.

GRANTED SUBJECT TO:

1.

Application for the approval of details reserved by this permission (siting, design,
external appearance and landscaping of the site) must be made not later than
the expiration of three years from the date of this Notice. The development
hereby permitted must be begun not later than whichever is the later of the
following date.

a. The expiration of five years from the date of this Notice.

b. The expiration of two years from the date of the final approval of the
details reserved by this permission or, in the case of approval on different
dates, the final approval of the last matter approved.

Approval of the details of the siting, design and external appearance of the
building and soft and hard landscaping of the site (hereinafter called the reserved
matters) shall be obtained in writing from the Local Planning Authority before any
development begins.

No development shall commence until a scheme to prevent direct overlooking of
nos. 2, 4 and 6 Moreton Road from windows above ground floor ceiling height on
the west elevation of any building in the southern part of the site, has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
approved scheme shall be carried out and implemented as agreed before first
commencement of any of the flats served by these windows.

A flood risk assessment shall be submitted to and approved by the Local
Planning Authority prior to commencement of development. The assessment
shall include calculations of increased run-off and associated volume of storm
detention using Windes or other similar programme. The approved measures
shall be undertaken prior to the first occupation of the building hereby approved
and shall be adequately maintained.

No construction work or deliveries into the site shall take place other than
between the hours of 07.30 and 18.30 on Monday to Friday and 08.00 to 13.00
on Saturdays unless agreed otherwise in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
No construction work or deliveries shall take place on Sundays, Bank or Public
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Details of cycle and motorcycle parking shall be submitted to and agreed in
writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to work commencing on site. The
details as agreed shall be carried out and implemented before first occupation of
any of the flats hereby approved.

PRggeld



PLANS SUB _COMMITTEE ‘C’ 27 JULY 2005

7. No development hereby approved shall take place until measures to enable the
provision of highway improvements to the local area, necessitated by this
development, are secured.

8. Details for the closure of part of the existing vehicular crossover and the
proposed new crossover and entrance shall be submitted to and agreed in
writing by the Local Planning Authority, prior to work first commencing on site.

5. APPLICATION NO: EPF/1480/04 PARISH Ongar
SITE ADDRESS:
Ongar Motors and Transport Co, The Borough, Greensted Road, Ongar
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL:
Erection of medical and day care centre with associated parking facilities.

Withdrawn by the applicants from the agenda:

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank

PRggel g



Agenda Iltem 6

AREA PLANS SUB-COMMITTEE ‘C’
24 AUGUST 2005

INDEX OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS/ENFORCEMENT

CASES
ITEM | REFERENCE SITE LOCATION PAGE
1. EPF/2260/04 Hales Farm, Nether Street, Abbess Roding 17
2. LB/EPF/359/05 Hales Farm, Nether Street, Abbess Roding 24
3. EPF/1112/05 Smallways Farm, Newmans End, Matching 26
4. EPF/824/05 32/34 (Shop) St Peter's Avenue, Ongar 33
5. EPF/861/05 32/34 St Peter's Avenue, Ongar 39

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



Epping Forest District Council

Final Committee Agenda DC.AID
For Committee meeting on: 24/08/2005 PCR2/1.8
Decision Level: Development Committee and Plans Sub-committee

APPLICATION No: EPF/2260/04 Report Item No: 1

SITE ADDRESS: PARISH: The Rodings

HALES FARM, NETHER STREET, ABBESS RODING
APPLICANT: Mr & Mrs J Cook

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL:

Conversion of farm buildings into two live/work units,

comprising of workspace area and one each of one bed, two bed
and four bed accommodation.

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission

1. To be commenced within 5 years.

2. The workspace shall be used solely for a use falling within Class B1 of
the Schedule of the Town & Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987, or
in any provision equivalent to that Class in any Statutory Instrument
revoking or re-enacting that Order.

3. Materials of construction to be agreed.
4. Erection of screen walls/fences.

5. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning General
Permitted Development Order 1995 (or of any equivalent provision in any
Statutory Instrument revoking or re-enacting that Order), the garage(s)
hereby approved shall be retained so that it is capable of allowing the
parking of cars together with any ancillary storage in connection with
the residential use of the site, and shall at no time be converted into
a room or used for any other purpose.

6. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General
Permitted Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other order revoking,
further amending or re-enacting that order) no development generally
permitted by virtue of Part 1, Classes A - G shall be undertaken without
the prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority.

7. Submission of a landscape scheme.

Page 15



8. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the amended
plans received on 9 August 2005 unless otherwise agreed in writing with
the Local Planning Authority.

9. The work space and office area for the two properties identified on
the approved plans shall remain as workspace areas in B1 use only and
shall not be used for residential purposes at any time, and shall not be
used by any persons other than those residing within the associated
residential properties at Hales Farm.

Members will recall this application was presented to the last
committee meeting when it was deferred to allow officers to
negotiate revisions to the scheme because of concerns relating
to one of the buildings. This has now occurred and the proposal
has been amended to provide two live/work units instead of
three as originally indicated. The report that follows has
therefore been revised from the original.

Description of Proposal:

The application is for the alteration and conversion of
existing disused agricultural buildings to two 'live/work'’
units, each with both residential and business (B1)
accommodation and use. The works include removal of 6
individual barns and groups of outbuildings (total 294 sq m),
and external alterations.

The buildings, which it is proposed to convert, are three
groups of barns. The largest (Building 'B") is a 1930's
blockwork structure, white painted which is understood to have
replaced a much older barn on the same ‘footprint’. Thisis a
substantial 2 storey building with corrugated pitched roof, and
the upper level nearly as extensive as the ground floor.

Of the other two narrow building groups comprising the intended
2 units, that lying alongside Nether Street is the oldest, with

part (Building 'A") dating from the late 16th century, and the
remainder (Building 'B' to be used for garaging for the

existing farmhouse and workspace for unit B) more modern. Both
are weatherboarded.

Description of Site:

The site is an irregular shaped area of land adjoining Hales
Farmhouse and within the former farm holding, now sold off and
administered separately. Hales Farm is a Grade Il listed
building. The site shares its access from Nether Street with

the farmhouse, along an unmetalled driveway running to the

Page 16



north of the outbuildings, then curving around them to end in
an informal parking area. These farm buildings were last
actively used in the early 1990's, for pig rearing. Adjacent
fields are cultivated for arable production.

The site is relatively isolated, lying around 3m NE of Abbess
Roding, and a similar distance away from Leaden Roding
(Uttlesford), which has some local facilities.

Relevant History:

EPF/1030/96 - Change of use of agricultural building for the
restoration of furniture - Approved. This relates to the
easternmost barn of modern prefabricated construction
(proposed for demolition).

EPF/1547/81 - Stationing of caravan - Refused

Policies Applied:

Local Plan Policies:

GB2, GB8 Green Belt

HC10, HC13 Listed buildings.
LL7,LL10, LL11 Landscaping.
DBE9 Effect on neighbours
T17 Traffic.

Structure Plan Policies:

RE2 Re-use of rural buildings

C2 Development within MGB

H2 sequential approach to housing development
CS4 Sustainable new development

HC3 protecting listed buildings and their settings.

Issues and Considerations:

The main issues here are considered to be whether the proposal
is acceptable in terms of the impact upon the Green Belt, the
effect on the setting of the listed building, any impact on the
neighbouring house, highway safety implications and the
sustainability of the site for residential purposes.

Green Belt

Policy GB2 (viii) enables a change of use to be considered
where it is in accordance with another Green Belt policy.

Policy GBS (i) of the Local Plan allows for the conversion of
buildings where they are permanent, substantial, capable of
conversion without major reconstruction and in keeping with
their general surroundings.

A structural and condition survey submitted with the

Page 17



application indicates that the barns are capable of conversion,
subject to re-roofing (including new rafters), repair or
replacement of any timber found to be locally decayed timber,
new concrete slabs and damp proof course. The report sets out
structural calculations, although it does not detail all works
necessary for new services or the minor alterations to layout
involved. Although some work would be required to convert the
buildings, there is no evidence of extensive ongoing structural
movement. It is considered that the works envisaged now
although quite extensive do not relate to the dwelling units
themselves but more to the ancillary structures used for
garaging and storage.

The group of buildings is of some interest and the two wings of
traditional barn scale contrast with the landmark two storey

end building. As such they are in keeping with their rural
surroundings and the listed Hales Farmhouse. The existing
mature yew and evergreen trees to the north of the buildings

are now to be retained and further screen planting added around
the new garden area of one of the units (the second to be in

the internal courtyard), improving the present rather open
aspect of the driveway and parking area across neighbouring
fields.

Policy GB8 continues at (ii) that if the first requirement is

met, then the new use should be one that is associated with
open uses acceptable in the Green Belt, or commercial

activities of benefit to the local area involving recreation or
tourism, or business or commercial uses which would not involve
open storage or significant vehicle parking.

In this case the applicant's agent argues that the buildings

are not suitable for modern agricultural uses, and in any case
the land has been sold away and they are situated close to the
residential property at Hales Farm.

Policy GB8 (ii) goes on to state that residential use will only

be accepted where the building is unsuitable for the other uses
set out above, but where the council considers it desirable

that the buildings be brought back into beneficial use.

In this instance one of the buildings is quite substantial and
prominent, and the others are single storey vernacular barn
buildings within the curtilage of a listed building. The
buildings are too extensive to be reasonably used only as
storage or other ancillary activity in connection with the
existing dwelling, and they have clearly remained unused for
any agricultural use for a significant period of time. The
proposal for live/work units offers the opportunity to regain
economic use with a measure of employment activity, whilst
reducing journey to work movements. The area is served by
broadband Internet services.

Finally in relation to GB8(ii), the access onto Nether Street
(B184) is on an unrestricted section of the main road, north of

Page 18



a bend with poor visibility that results in some danger
particularly in egress to the north, as confirmed by the
Engineering service. Intensified use of the access by
slow-moving commercial vehicles, as would probably be the case
with a wholly business conversion would therefore be
undesirable. Due to the floorspace of the barns (approximately
422 square metres), Local Plan standards would call for up to
17 parking spaces (2 + 1 per 15 sq m), compared with the 6
proposed spaces for the 2 live/work units (based on residential
as the larger use). More frequent deliveries would also be
required for an all-business use, with the sub-standard access
visibility. Historically, the applicant reckons that up

to 184 vehicle movements per week were generated by the
previous agricultural activities.

Policy GB8(iii), the last relevant sub-section envisages

potential for appropriate benefits to Green Belt or countryside
objectives. A total of 294 sq m of more modern outbuildings

are to be demolished, some in poor physical condition and none
of visual merit. This would reduce the outbuildings at Hales
Farm by 43%, in an open countryside location, which would be of
demonstrable Green Belt policy benefit.

Listed Building Considerations:

The outbuildings are not listed in their own right but are
"curtilage buildings" of the late 16th century house (Building
A being apparently of at least the same age) and so listed
building consent is required for work to them. A separate
Listed Building application has been submitted and is next on
the agenda. The Council's Conservation Officer has inspected
the buildings and (following amendment to the alterations for
Building A) is now satisfied that the works are sympathetic to
their rural character and appearance, and not detrimental to
the setting of the listed farmhouse. The conversion is
'natural’, keeping the layout of all existing spaces with the
sole exception of Building A, where a vertical division is
proposed which maintains the full height of the area up to the
existing mezzanine floor. A relatively small number of
additional openings are involved, some facing in to the inner
courtyard and none detracting from the overall rural character
of the group, or the special character of the listed house.

Impact on neighbours

The only property affected is the farmhouse itself. As the
business activity would be likely to be office-based, and would
in any case be associated with living accommodation, no
significant adverse impact is envisaged.

Highway Issues

For the reasons of visibility already referred to, the Highway

Authority has no objections to this proposal. A condition is
requested to secure covered cycle and motorcycle parking, and

Page 19



there is room in the buildings for some provision, as well as
around the curtilage. Ample parking is available within the
site.

Sustainability

The site is separated from Abbess Roding, itself a hamlet with
a church but no shops or services. Just over a mile away,
however, Leaden Roding does have a primary school, convenience
store and public house, with an hourly weekday bus service
between Harlow and Chelmsford running within 400m of Hales
Farm. It is clear that occupiers would rely on the car for
access to work, shops and other facilities, but only one of the
units is now of family size, which reduces the range of

facilities such as schools that would be needed. The
development would enable working from home to reduce traffic
movements, compared with either previous agricultural or
potential business uses that would both be likely to have staff
coming in by car from the wider area. This small-scale change
of use is seen as assisting implementation of transport
sustainability.

Conclusion

It is considered that this relatively small-scale change of use

to two live/work units is acceptable in Green Belt terms.

There are no amenity impacts, and there are practical benefits
in removal of nearly half the ground floor area of outbuildings
in the rural curtilage of the listed building. The traffic
movements, will be fewer and involve mainly cars, which would
better suit the dangerous location on the B184 than business
uses, and the mainly non-family accommodation minimises the
need to rely on facilities further away in the nearest town of
Ongar.

Permission is recommended.

SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:
PARISH COUNCIL - No objection.

Page 20



Leaden Roding “-!' '
5 ' Bridge
The Old Recto TR

ouse
bttages

63m

""‘---..—...____‘___‘___-—_
_‘-‘--\N-‘-‘—-——

Nether Street
Farm

Depot

— 7
. Nether Stree

The material contained in this plot has been reproduced -
from an Ordnance Survey map with the permission of the I te m N O S 1 & 2
Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. -
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and

may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. S | - 1 . 5000
EFDC licence No.100018534 Ca e . .

Page 21



Epping Forest District Council

Final Committee Agenda

For Committee meeting on: 24/08/2005

Decision Level: Development Committee and Plans Sub-committee

DC.AID
PCR2/1.8

APPLICATION No: LB/EPF/359/05 Report Item No: 2

SITE ADDRESS: PARISH: The Rodings
HALES FARM, NETHER STREET, ABBESS RODING

APPLICANT: Mr and Mrs J Cook

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL.:
Grade Il Listed Building application for the conversion of farm
buildings within the curtilage of the listed building.

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission

1. To be commenced within 5 years

2. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the amended
plans received on 9 August 2005 unless otherwise agreed in writing with
the Local Planning Authority.

3. Materials of construction to be agreed.

4. Additional drawings that show details of proposed new windows, doors,
rooflights, eaves, verges, fascias, cills, structural openings and
junctions with the existing building, by sections and elevation at scales
between 1:20 and 1:1 as appropriate, shall be submitted to and approved
by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of
any works.

Description of Proposal:

This is the application for listed building consent that
accompanies the application reported in the previous item.
Policies Applied:

Local Plan

HC10, HC13 listed buildings.

Structure Plan
HC3 protecting listed buildings and their settings.

Page 22



Issues and Considerations:

The outbuildings are not listed in their own right but are
"curtilage buildings" of the late 16th century house (Building

A being apparently of at least the same age) and so listed
building consent is required for work to them. The Council's
Conservation Officer has inspected the buildings and (following
amendment to the alterations for Building A) is now satisfied
that the works are sympathetic to their rural character and
appearance, and not detrimental to the setting of the listed
farmhouse.

The conversion is 'natural’, keeping the layout of all existing
spaces with the sole exception of Building A, where a vertical
division is proposed which maintains the full height of the
area up to the existing mezzanine floor. A relatively small
number of additional openings are involved, some facing in to
the inner courtyard and none detracting from the overall rural
character of the group, or the special character of the listed
house.

It is therefore considered that the proposals will make only
relatively minor alteration to the present character and
appearance of the outbuildings, retaining the rural design and
materials of the more traditional barns and not affecting the
different character of the landmark 1930's white barn.

Listed building consent is recommended.

SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:
PARISH COUNCIL - No objection.

Page 23



Epping Forest District Council

Final Committee Agenda

For Committee meeting on: 24/08/2005

Decision Level: Development Committee and Plans Sub-committee

DC.AID
PCR2/1.8

APPLICATION No: EPF/1112/05 Report Item No: 3

SITE ADDRESS: PARISH: Matching
SMALLWAYS FARM, NEWMANS END, MATCHING

APPLICANT: Mr B Russell & Ms E Malone
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL.:

Conversion of barn and stable to two dwellings.
RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission

1. To be commenced within 5 years.

2. Materials of construction to be agreed.
3. Erection of screen walls/fences.

4. Drainage details to be agreed.

5. Garage to be retained.

6. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General
Permitted Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other order revoking,
further amending or re-enacting that order) no development generally
permitted by virtue of Part 1, Classes A - E shall be undertaken without
the prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority.

7. All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations (which
includes deliveries and other commercial vehicles to and from the site)
which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, shall only
take place on site between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday
and 08.00 to 13.00 hours Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Bank
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing to the Local Planning
Authority.

8. Submission of tree planting details

9. Retention of existing trees and shrubs

Page 24



10. Prior to the commencement of the development, details of the proposed
surface materials for the access and courtyard shall be submitted to and
approved by the Local Planning Authority. The agreed surface treatment
shall be completed prior to the first occupation of the development.

11. Parking area to be provided/maintained.

12. Contaminated land study and remediation.

Description of Proposal:

Conversion of Barn and Stable building to two dwellings.
Comprising four bedroom unit within timber frame barn and two
bedroom within single storey former stable building, and site
works.

Description of Site:

Large detached dwelling house with timber framed barn and brick
built stable block adjacent within small hamlet of Newmans End,
Matching. Newmans End lies some one mile north of Matching
Tye and approximately two miles south of Sheering village.

Dwellings opposite and in ribbon southwards on the opposite
side of the road. Several small cottages lying to the rear and
north of the site. Open agricultural land to the rear and
south.

The barn lies at a 90 degree angle off the back edge of
carriageway with stable building at right angles to the barn
fronting the road, currently part used for office purposes. A
traditional listed telephone box is situated adjacent the barn
together with a pole mounted post box both on the carriageway
verge.

Relevant History:

Various applications for extensions and alterations to the
house.

Policies Applied:

Structure Plan:

RE2 - re-use of Rural Buildings

C2 - Development in the Green Belt

H2 - Sequential approach to housing
CS4 - Sustainable new Development

Page 25



Local Plan:

GB2 and GB8 Green Belt

DBE4, DBE5, DBE6, DBES8, DBE9 - Design
LL10 and LL11 - Landscaping

T17 - Highways New development

Issues and Considerations:

The key issues are whether the proposal accords with the policy
criteria for the re-use of rural buildings and if so what the

impact of the development will be on the local area and on the
amenities of neighbours.

Policy GB8 of the Local Plan allows for the re-use of rural
buildings subject to a criteria which requires the buildings to
be permanent and of substantial construction, capable of
conversion without major or complete re-construction and in
keeping with their surroundings.

The policy continues and specifies the proposed use should be
in accordance with Green Belt policy GB2, recreational or
tourism related, or for business or storage use, which would
not involve open storage or significant vehicle parking;

finally residential use where the building is unsuitable for

any of the above uses and where it is desirable that the
building be brought back into beneficial use.

The Buildings:

The proposal entails two buildings which are both permanent and
substantial. Both buildings are attractive and in keeping

within this rural area. Because of their prominent location

within this settlement it is desirable that a viable use be

found for the buildings to ensure their future upkeep.

The larger of the two buildings, the barn, is of traditional
appearance and the scheme proposed for its conversion appears
sympathetic to its character. A structural report with the
application concludes that areas of repair are likely to be
required but that this would not amount to major

reconstruction. Certainly a cursory site inspection of the

building supports this view. Attached to the barn and running
parallel with the road is an open fronted cart-lodge which is
shown retained for car parking.

The stable building is single storey and remains unaltered to
the front. An existing glazed lean-to across the rear

elevation is shown removed and replaced by two smaller wings,
one partially glazed as a conservatory and the other a solid
extension to form the main bedroom. Together these additions
have a lesser footprint than the removed lean-to and being on
the rear they have very limited impact on the surroundings.

Page 26



The Use:

Set within a small, well defined residential settlement, albeit
devoid of any public facilities, the buildings reuse is a
sensitive matter if the character of the hamlet is to be
safeguarded and that of its amenities.

The site is laid out as an enclosed courtyard with parking for

both units and the existing dwelling set within. Space is

limited within this area such that any use which increased the
level of traffic and parking could be a problem and might
encourage parking on the road outside which would be harmful to
the settlement.

Despite the concerns of neighbours in relation to parking and
traffic with this proposal no objections have been raised by
the Highway Authority who are also satisfied with the parking
provision.

In a letter supporting the application the applicants' agent

argues that the buildings would not be suitable for tourist
accommodation because of their size and the unlikely demand for
such accommodation in this part of Essex. He has not provided
any documentation to indicate this possibility has been

properly tested and appears to rely on assumption which may not
be correct.

It must be accepted however, that a tourist use of the
buildings would be likely to have a similar impact both in
terms of their physical appearance and the traffic generation.

Other commercial uses have been considered but discounted
because of the disturbance such uses would have on the area and
neighbours and particularly because of the location of the site
from a local roads point of view. Newmans End lies between the
two settlements of Matching Tye and Sheering the roads into

both are narrow and twisting and would not lend themselves easy
to the passage of large commercial vehicles.

A small scale storage or office use of the smaller building of
the two could be considered and in fact part of this building

is currently used by the applicants as a small office.

However, they have argued that this is only possible because
the user lives on site at the moment and that its small scale
limits the amount of traffic to the building and the site

itself such that it does not affect local amenities. Greater

use of the building or indeed the site for commercial use could
increase both traffic and the need for more parking space which
could not be accommodated within the site and would be likely
to have more effect on neighbours and the appearance of the
settlement. This factor would clearly be of concern to
neighbours who have commented on parking concerns with the
current submission.

Although not supported by any documented evidence these factors

Page 27



are of merit and on balance it could be accepted are of
sufficient weight to support the use of the buildings for
residential use.

This conclusion has to be balanced against the proposal of
introducing new dwellings into a rural area the occupants of
which would be wholly reliant on private motor cars. In broad
terms this would be contrary to the sustainability policies
within the Structure Plan and that of Government Guidance.

In the past the Council have resisted proposals for such rural
development on sustainability grounds, however, this has
usually only been supplementary to other grounds for refusal.

Finally when considering residential useage of rural buildings
the impact of such a use has to be assessed. In the past
Government advice has warned Councils to carefully consider
the impact of residential trappings on the countryside
landscape and its character. In this case it has to be
accepted that the site lies within a rural settlement and that
the site is very well screened partly by the layout of the
buildings and the quality of the existing landscaping
surrounding the site. It is important that if this use is
approved however that the existing landscaping is safeguarded
and where applicable supplemented, this can be achieved by
condition.

Conclusions:

The buildings proposed for conversion are both permanent and
substantial capable of conversion to the proposed use without
major reconstruction. Both buildings are in keeping with their
surroundings and worthy of reuse because of their prominent
location and historic connections within the settlement.

Whilst physically capable of reuse for a variety of uses the
location of the buildings surrounded by other residential
properties and the access and parking capabilities of the site
suggests that residential use is likely to be the least
disruptive and visually most appropriate use.

SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:

PARISH COUNCIL - No objections.

2 RED TILE COTTAGES - Disapprove of plans, area too tight to
accommodate number of people who could live there. Car parking
unsightly, insufficient electricity capabilities, poor water

supplies, concerned generally how works would be carried out.

1 RED TILE COTTAGES - Opposed, concerned regarding works to
trees on the site previously concerned about business interests

of applicants and use of stable as office. Insufficient space

for parking, drainage and other services and effect of

proposals on area.

4 RED TILE COTTAGES - Opposed, concerns about current use of

Page 28



building and information on application. Concerned about
previous works to trees, insufficient drainage facilities and
environmental impact of proposals.

WHEELERS FARM - Any increase of residential units in small
hamlet would be detrimental, parking would be major problem.
Worries about sewer and water management and flooding.

3 RED TILE COTTAGES - There does not appear to be adequate
parking for development. Listed telephone box and letter box
must remain in situ.

Page 29



Cottages |,

Smallways

Farm

Newman's End

Matching Farsonag

Evergreen

Coftage

Chestnut
Cottage

The material contained in this plot has been reproduced .
from an Ordnance Survey map with the permission of the I te I I I N O 0 3
Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. .
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and

may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. S | - 1 . 1 2 50
EFDC licence No.100018534 Ca e . .

Page 30




Epping Forest District Council

Final Committee Agenda

For Committee meeting on: 24/08/2005

Decision Level: Development Committee and Plans Sub-committee

DC.AID
PCR2/1.8

APPLICATION No: EPF/824/05 Report Item No: 4

SITE ADDRESS: PARISH: Ongar
32/34 (SHOP) ST PETER'S AVENUE, ONGAR

APPLICANT: Adrian Chan

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL.:
Change of use to A5 Chinese take-away.

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission

1. To be commenced within 5 years.

The use hereby permitted shall not be open to customers outside the hours
of 17.00 to 22.30 Monday to Saturday and 17.00 to 22.00 on Sundays and
Bank Holidays.

Prior to commencement of the development, equipment shall be installed to
suppress and disperse fumes and/or smell produced by cooking and food
preparation. The equipment shall be effectively operated and maintained
for so long as the use continues. Details of the equipment shall be
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority

and the equipment shall be installed and be in full working order prior

to the commencement of use.

The rating level of noise (as defined by BS4142:1997) emitted from the
mechanical plant shall not exceed 5dB(A) above the prevailing background
noise level. The measurement position and assessment shall be made
according to BS4142:1997.

Prior to commencement of the development, details of foul drainage from
the kitchen shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. Drains serving the kitchens in the development shall

be fitted with a grease separator, as detailed in the Building

Regulations 2000, Approved Document H (Drainage and waste disposal), to
comply with prEN 1825-1 and designed in accordance with prEN 1825-2
(Installation for separation of grease) or other effective means of

grease removal. The approved drainage shall be retained and maintained
while the site is in use.

Prior to the premises being brought into use for the purpose hereby
permitted, a scheme providing for the adequate storage of refuse from

Page 31



this use shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The scheme shall be carried out and thereafter
retained at all times.

7. Prior to the commencement of the development, details of the external
appearance of the extract flue, which shall be painted in a dark colour
and be permanently maintained as such, shall be submitted for approval in
writing by the Local Planning Authority and installed in accordance with
those details.

Description of Proposal:

This application is for a change of use from a retail unit
(class Al) to a takeaway food business (class A5) with
ancillary extraction equipment.

Description of Site:

The application site comprises a ground floor unit of a three
storey building that contains "shop" premises with residential
properties above. The site is set on the northern side of St.
Peter's Avenue in a predominantly residential area. A car
parking/garaging area is located directly to the rear of the
site, with residences also nearby.

Relevant History:

No planning history.

Policies Applied:

Recycling & Pollution, Shopping & Town Centres, Amenity and
Highway Policies from Epping Forest District Council's Adopted
Local Plan:-

RP5 - Impact from noise and air pollution.
STC10 - Change of use of village shops.
DBE9 - Amenity considerations.

T14 - Car parking.

Issues and Considerations:
The main issues with this application relate to the principle
of changing the use and how it affects the shopping parade and

the effect of the use on the amenities of the surrounding area.

The premises is not identified as being within a shopping
parade in the local plan, however it is appropriate to class it

Page 32



as a village shop and is therefore covered by the requirements
of STC10. This states that changes of use to non-retail will

not be granted unless it can be demonstrated there is no market
demand for the existing use, or that the existing use is
continued to be provided within the locality.

Discussion with the Council's Estates division has established
that the shop unit has been vacant since March 2004. It has
been established that all bar one of the enquiries relating to
this unit were for non Al uses (the Al enquiry posing an
uneconomically viable rent). In the light of this it is
considered that to ensure occupation of all of the units of

this parade (thereby contributing to the vitality of it) a non

Al use such as this would be appropriate. It is likely
otherwise that the unit will remain vacant, thereby detrimental
to viability and the amenity of the street scene.

In addition to this, the parade currently comprises an A2
finance office together with two Al units (a hairdressers and
general shop). In light of the fact that two "active' existing

Al units will remain, it is considered that there will be a

wide range of uses available to the local community and that
refusal on the basis of loss of an Al unit, given the length of
time the premises has been marketed for rent would be difficult
to substantiate on appeal.

The submitted plans show details of extraction equipment, which
is to be sited at the rear of the building. Aesthetically, the
details on the plans show a tall flue, which Environmental
Health Officers would require to ensure that no adverse effects
arise from fumes or smells from cooking. Since this is to be

at the rear of the building, and the nearest residential

building (that would view this) is some 20 metres away it is
considered that this would be acceptable. Were the flue
painted a dark colour (which can be requested in a relevant
condition) its effect would be less dominant). A condition
requesting that the full details of such a structure be

submitted for approval will ensure that control will be had

over its detailed visual appearance and function.

The position of the flue itself is quite close in location to a
rear facing window on a top floor flat within the block, above
the site. The visual impact from this property is considered
to be minimal, and Environmental Health Officers state no
objections to the flue, or the use itself in principle in terms
of smell and noise (which a condition will ensure is not to an
excessive level).

The hours of operation of the take-away can be restricted to
ensure that neighbouring amenity is protected. Policy RP5
supports resisting proposals that give rise to noise or smells
close to residential, except where it is possible to mitigate
adverse effects by the use of conditions. This is considered
to be the case with this proposal.

Page 33



Significant concern has been rasied with regard to the issue of
youths congregating around a take away, together with the risk
of litter and possible vermin infestations arising from this.

The issue of youths congregating could in fact occur whether or
not the take away is in place or not, however it is
acknowledged that later opening hours may give rise to this.

In the light of the fact that other legislation exists to

protect residents from anti-social behaviour, it is considered
that refusal on these grounds would be difficult to defend on
appeal. A planning condition can ensure that refuse from the
take away itself is adequately disposed of, however litter
arising from customers would again be controlled under other
legislation.

Although concern has been rasied with regard to car parking,
Highways Officers raise no objections to the proposal on this
basis.

Given the background to this site and the fact it has been
vacant for almost 18 months, it is considered that allowing a
non Al use will add to the character of the surroundings. The
representations of neighbours have been carefully considered
and on balance it is felt that this use is appropriate for this
site.

The application is recommended for approval.

SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:

PARISH COUNCIL - Concerns were expressed with regard to the
inadequacy of parking provision in the area, and the additional
traffic within a residential area which may result. Members

seek assurances that any extracting system used would not have
a detrimental effect on the immediate neighbourhood in terms of
smells or noise.

17 ST PETERS AVENUE - Will affect the quality of our living
conditions. House was purchased as no such establishment was
in the vicinity. Already a problem with youths causing noise,
fighting, vandalism, graffiti and generally littering. This

will attract youths to loiter and will add to existing

problems. My son and baby are often kept awake. Youths also
litter the public park area meaning | cannot let my son play

there. Noise and littering will be made worse. This will

devalue my property and will cause a vast increase in police
calls and complaints to the Council about noise and litter.

9 ST PETERS AVENUE - Objection; 1) Parking is difficult, but
during evenings it is impossible, when this shop will be open.

2) Litter and smells arising will be offensive; 3) More traffic

will be a danger to children and OAP's living in bungalows in

St Peters Avenue; 4) Cannot see the need for this, it will take
trade from local fish and chip shop. 5) Noise from people

using the take away and those using play area as a picnic site
will be unacceptable in a residential area, already used as a

race track and meeting place by young people.

Page 34



15 ST PETERS AVENUE - Oppose the application. Itis a quiet
residential area. Will cause following problems; 1) Increased
noise from traffic and people. People may loiter, will the

area be policed? 2) There are insufficient parking facilities

and we experience difficulties accessing our drive opposite the
shops. This will become more frequent and if a delivery

service is provided residents are likely to suffer from effects

of motorcycles speeding round the roads and pavements. 3) Will
be increased litter and refuse that will cause a vermin problem
and encourage pests into the area. Takeaway is next to a green
area that includes a playground. This could be contaminated by
faeces. What cleaning regime will be introduced? There are
already sufficient facilities for fast food in the area.

24/26 ST PETERS AVENUE - Would like to reject the proposal on
basis of environmental hazards; too many youngsters hanging
around; litter being disposed outside the shops; lack of

parking spaces. Will cause more problems for the estate. What
we need is a shop that will benefit everyone around the estate,
of normal working hours.

PETITION SIGNED BY 54 RESIDENTS OF ST PETERS AVENUE, MORETON
ROAD, SHORTLANDS AVENUE AND QUEENSWAY - Oppose the application.

19 ST PETERS AVENUE - Strongly object. Will have an
unacceptable impact on our property. Not a suitable location
for this type of business. 1) There is insufficient parking,
particularly in the evening. Children are often outside

playing and it is an accident waiting to happen. 2) Close
proximity to our house will result in unacceptable increase in
noise from customers, cars and the attraction of local youths
to the area. 3) Health concerns including food waste (by
takeaway and customers) littering our streets in an area that
has had problems with rats. Use of our driveway as a turning
area may result in damage to our fences, this has happened in
the past. This totally residential site is inappropriate and

it will have a negative effect on the quality of our life.

Fyfield Road is more suitable.

Page 35



8826

Playground

38010
AJTIIHS

Shelley

M 61.07m
T PETER'S AVENUE

s

The material contained in this plot has been reproduced .

from an Ordnance Survey map with the permission of the I te I I I N O S 4 & 5
Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. *

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and

may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. S Ca |e . 1 . 1 250

EFDC licence No.100018534

Page 36



Epping Forest District Council

Final Committee Agenda

For Committee meeting on: 24/08/2005

Decision Level: Development Committee and Plans Sub-committee

DC.AID
PCR2/1.8

APPLICATION No: EPF/861/05 Report Item No: 5

SITE ADDRESS: PARISH: Ongar
32/34 ST PETER'S AVENUE, ONGAR

APPLICANT: Mr A Cevik

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL:
Change of use from Al (carpet shop) to A5 (take away food shop)
Installation of new extraction flue at rear.

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission

1. To be commenced within 5 years.

2. The use hereby permitted shall not be open to customers/members outside
the hours of 17.00 to 22.30 Monday to Saturday, 17.00 to 22.00 on Sundays
and Bank Holidays.

3. Prior to the commencement of the development, equipment shall be
installed to suppress and disperse fumes and/or smell produced by cooking
and food preparation. The equipment shall be effectively operated and
maintained for so long as the use continues. Details of the equipment
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority and the equipment shall be installed and be in full working
order prior to the commencement of use.

4. The rating level of noise (as defined by BS4142:1997) emitted from the
mechanical plant shall not exceed 5dB(A) above the prevailing background
noise level. The measurement position and assessment shall be made
according to BS4142:1997.

5. Prior to the commencement of the development, details of foul drainage
from the kitchen shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. Drains serving the kitchens in the development
shall be fitted with a grease separator, as detailed in the Building
Regulations 2000, Approved Document H (Drainage and waste disposal), to
comply with prEN 1825-1 and designed in accordance with prEN 1825-2
(Installations for separation of grease) or other effective means of
grease removal. The approved drainage shall be retained and maintained
while the site is in use.

Page 37



6. Prior to the premises being brought into use for the purpose hereby
permitted, a scheme providing for the adequate storage of refuse from
this use shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The scheme shall be carried out and thereafter
retained at all times.

7. Prior to the commencement of the development, details of the external
appearance of the extract flue, which shall be painted in a dark colour
and be permanently maintained as such, shall be submitted for approval in
writing by the Local Planning Authority and installed in accordance with
those details.

Description of Proposal:

This application is for the change of use from Al (retail) to
A5 (take away) and the installation of an extraction flue at
rear.

The main issues and considerations with this proposal are

virtually identical to those within the concurrently submitted
application EPF/824/05 (except for detailed elements).

SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:
As per EPF/824/05.

Page 38



